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June 12,2013

Karen G. Mills, Administrator
U.S. Small Business Administration
403 3rd Street, S.W.
Washington, DC 20416

Linda R. Nelson, Director
U.S. Small Business Administration
Arkansas District Office
2120 Riverfront Drive, Ste. 250
Little Rock, AR72202

Nique Canington, Director
U.S. Small Business Administration
Little Rock Servicing Center
2120 Riverfront Drive, Ste. 100
Little Rock, AR 72202

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL, RETI]RN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Re: 60-Day Notice oflntent to Sue: Endangered Species Àct Violations Related to
the U.S. Small Business Administration Loan Guarantee of C & H Hog Farm
in Mount Judea, Arkansas

Dear Administrator Mills and Directors Nelson and Canington:

On behalf of Arkansas Canoe Club, Buffalo River Watershed Alliance, National Parks
Conservation Association, and the Ozark Society (collectively, "Citizen Groups"), I am writing
to request that you take immediate aotion to remedy ongoing violations ofthe Endangered
Species Act ("ESA'), l6 U.S.C. $$ l53l-1544, by the U.S. Small Business Administration
("SBA'). SBA's $2.3 million loan guarantee to C & H Hog Farms is a federal action that may
affect the endangered snuffbox mussel, the endangered Gray bat, and the endangered Indiana bat,
all of which occur in the Buffalo National River region of Arkansas. The SBA has not engaged
in consultation with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service ("FWS") to ensure that its action does not
jeopardize these listed species or destroy or adversely modifu their critical habitat, as required by
Section 7(a)(2) ofthe ESA, l6 U.S.C. $ 1536(a)(2). This letter constitutes notice required by
Section 11(g) ofthe ESA, 16U.S.C. $ l5a0(g), prior to commencement of legal action.

I. @Eeslr@
On November 16,2012, Farm Credit of Westem Arkansas ("Farm Credit") approved a loan to C
& H Hog Farms, Inc. (loan number 5560615009) in the amount of $2,318,200, for which the
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sBA provided a loan guarantee. ,see Letter from Jeffrey o'Donald, sBA Loan servicing ctr., to
Kevin cassidy, Earth¡ise Law ch. (May 30, 2013) (attached herero as Exhibit A). sBA;s loan
guarantee was in addition to a Farm Service Agency ('FSA") loan guarantee for $1,302,000 to c
& H Hog Farms. Farm Credit provided the loans, totaling more than $3.6 million, and SBA and
FSA guaranteed the loans, for C & H Hog Farms' pruchase of 23.43 acres of land and
construction and operation of a swine farrowing bam and a swine gestation bam in Mount Judea,
Arkansas,

There is no evidence that sBA has had any communication with FWS, much less engaged in
meaningful ESA Section 7 consultation. Pursuant to section 7(a)(2) ofthe ESA, sBA was and is
required to initiate and conduct consultation with FWS to ensure that sBA's guarantee of the
$2.3 million loan to c & H Hog Farms will not result in a project that jeopurJir., endangered
and/or threatened species or results in the destruction or adverse modification ofdesignated
critical habitat. 16 u,s.c. g 1536(a)(2). A Freedom of Information Acr ('FoIA') requesr to
SBA concerning its multi-million dollar loan guarantee and consultations with relevant agencies
yielded no information. ,See Ex. A. In fact, in response to the FOIA request regarding reõords
related to the $2.3 million loan guarantee, sBA's Little Rock Loan servicing center responded
that it had no records whatsoever. See ld. ("Loan files are not generated for electronic loans,
and therefore we have no records to produce.").

In a July 5,20l2letter to Farm credit, the FWS provided a list of threatened, endangered and
candidate species known to occur in the region subject to potential effects from construction and
operation of the swine facility. .see Letter from Jim Boggs, FWS, to Dan Benton, Farm credit
(July 5,2012) (attached hereto as Exhibit B). The list included tle endangered Gray bat and
Indiana bat, as well as the candidate species, rabbitsfoot mussel, as species known to occur in the
region of the C & H Hog Farm. Id. FWS made clear that its letter "should not be misconstrued
as an 'effect determination' or considered as concurrence with any proceeding determination(s)
by the action agency in accordance with Section 7 of the ESA.,' Id

In late January 2013, Farm Credit requested that FWS send a new letter to Farm Credit to clarify
that the facility was near Mount Judea, not near Ponca as indicated in FWS's July 5, 2012 letter.
On February 8, 2013, FWS sent Farm Credit an updated letter with the requested change
identiÍ)ing the facility's location as Mount Judea, along with rwo additional updates: (1) the
federal status ofthe rabbitsfoot mussel had changed to proposed threatened and the Buffalo
River had been proposed as critical habitat for the rabbitsfoot; and (2) the endangered snuffbox
mussel was identified as a potentially affected species that had been inadveÍently omitted from
FWS'soriginalJu,ly5,2012letter.,leeLetterfromJimBoggs,FWS,toLindaNewkirk,FSA
(Mar. 4,2013) (attached hereto as Exhibit C).

II. Lesal Backsround

section 7(a)(2) ofthe ESA requires each federal agency ("action agency") to ensure that its
actions are not likely to jeopardize the continued existence of any endangered or th¡eatened
species or result in the destruction or adverse modification of designated critical habitat. 16
U.S.C. $ 1536(a). The regulations implementing ESA Section 7 broadly define the scope of
agency actions that are subject to consultation. An "action" means "all activities or programs of



any kind, authorized, funded or carried out, in whole or in part, by federal agencies.,' 50 C.F.R.
s 402.02.

Section 7 ofthe ESA establishes an interagency consultation process to assist federal agencies in
complying with their duties to ensure against jeopardy to listed species or destruction or adverse
modification of critical habitat. As a first step, the action agency must inquire of the FWS
whether any tlreatened or endangered species may be present in the area ofthe proposed action.
16 U'S.C. $ 1536(cX1). An agency must initiate consultation under Section 7 whenever it takes
an action that "may affect" a listed species. 50 c.F.R. g a02.1a(a). As part ofthe consultation
process, the action agency must either prepare a biological assessment and submit it for the
FWS's review or receive written concurrence from the FWS that the proposed action "is not
likely to adversely affect listed species or critical habitat." 1d. $$ 402.13, 402.14(b). In tulfilling
the requirements ofthe consultation process, federal agencies must use the best scientific and
commercial data available. 16 u.s.c. g 1536(aX2). Pending the completion of the consultation
process, agency actions that may affect listed species cannot go forward. See Thomas v.
Peterson,753 F.2d 754,764 (9th Cir. 1985) (.,If a project is allowed to proceed without
substantial compliance with those procedural requirements, there can be no assurance that a
violation ofthe ESA's substantive provisions will not result. The latter, of course, is
impermissible.").

ilI. Violations of Law

under section 7(a)(2) of the ESA, the sBA is required to ensure that its $2.3 million loan
guarantee to C & H farms is not likely to jeopardize the continued existence ofany endangered
species or destroy or adversely modifu their critical habitat. See 16 U,S.C. g 1536(a). Three
federallyJisted endangered species are known to occur in the vicinity ofthe proposed swine
facility:theGraybat,theIndianabat,andthesnuffboxmussel.rAdditionally,therabbitsfoot
mussel, a proposed threatened species, occurs in the region and the Buffalo National River is
proposed as critical habitat for the rabbitsfoot. By failing engage in consultation with the FWS,
the SBA has violated and continues to violate the ESA.

The sBA failed both to initiate and conduct consultation with FWS regarding the th¡ee ESA-
listed species described above. ,see 16 u.s.c. 91536(cX1). Further, the sBA failed to confer

¡ The National Park Service also identified Gray bat habitat in the vicinity ofthe proposed hog farm in a
February 27,2013 letter to the FSA:

My staff is aware of at least one cave within normal foraging distance of the application
field area which contains the endangered Gray bat. This species forages primarily over
streams. We believe that any pollution of Big Creek resulting from this operation has the
potential to have an adverse effect upon these bats.

Letter from Kevin Cheri, Nat'l Park Serv., to Linda Newkirk, Farm Services Agency (Feb.27,2013),
available at
http://buffaloriverwatershedalliance.wildapricot.org/Resources/Documents/Lh%2otoolo20FSAo/o20State%
20Bxecutiveo/o20DirectorYo20022713.odf . In response, in tMarch29,2013 letter to the Nps, the FSA
acknowledged that a Gray bat cave is located 2.5 miles from the proposed swine facility,



\¡vith Fws regarding the rabbitsfoot mussel, a species proposed to be listed under the ESA, and
the critical habitat proposed to be designated for the rabbitsfo ot. See 16 U.S.C. $ 1536(a)(a).
There is no evidence ofany communication regarding the loan guarantee between SBA and
FWS. Thus, it appears that SBA guaranteed the $2.3 million loan with absolutely no
consultation with the FWS. Accordingly, the sBA has taken no action whatsoever to ensure
againstjeopardy regarding these three endangered species, and thus has violated and continues to
violate the ESA.

IV. Parties Givine Notice

The ñrll name, address, and telephone number of the parties providing this notice are:

Arkansas Canoe Club
5 Sycamore Drive
Conway, Arkansas 72032
501-472-6873

The Buffalo River Watershed Alliance
632 Koen Forest Road
Jasper, AR 72641
870-7ts-0260

National Parks Conservation Association
777 6th St., NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20001-3723
202-223-6722

The Ozark Society
P. O. Box 2914
Little Rock, AR72203
479-466-3077

V. Conclusion

Ifyou would like to discuss the contents ofthis letter, or believe that anything contained herein is
in enor, please feel free to contact Kevin Cassidy at 781-659-1696 or cassidv@lclark.edu.
Otherwise, please expect the Citizen Groups to file a lawsuit in United States district court upon
the expiration of60 days from the date of this notice.

Sincerely,



Earthjustice
156 William St., Suite 800
New York, NY 10038
212-845-7376

Kevin Cassidy
Earttuise Law Center
P.O. Box 445
Norwell, MA 02061
781-6s9-1696

Hank Bates
Camey Bates Pulliam PLLC
1 13 1 I Arcade Dr.
Little Rock, AR 72212
501-312-8500

On behalf of Citizen Groups

Sally Jewell, Secretary of Interior
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 U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 
 LITTLE ROCK SERVICING CENTER 
 2120 RIVERFRONT DRIVE, SUITE 100 
 LITTLE ROCK, AR  72202-1747 
 (501) 324-5871 
 FAX (202) 481-6347 

 

May 30, 2013 

 

              
Kevin M. Cassidy 

Staff Attorney 

Earthrise Law Center 

cassidy@lclark.edu. 
 

 

Re:  Freedom of Information Act Request, Tracking #2013-04479  

Loan Name:  C & H Hog Farms, Inc. 

              

Dear Kevin M. Cassidy:   

 

This is in reference to your recent Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request received dated May 9, 

2013, in which you requested “copies of any and all documents, records and communications of any kind, 

including but not limited to e-mails, interoffice memoranda, and notes, relating to the decision of the SBA 

to guarantee a loan to C&H Hog Farms in Newton County, Arkansas”. 

 

The loan that we have for the above referenced borrower is an “Electronic Loan.”  Loan files are not 

generated for electronic loans, and therefore we have no records to produce.  However, I can tell you 

that loan #5560615009 was approved on 11/16/2012, in the amount of $2,318,200.00.  For further 

information regarding this loan please contact FARM CR. SERVICES - WESTERN AR, located at P.O. BOX 

1719, RUSSELVILLE AR 72811.  

 

In the future, if you wish to be treated as a first-party requester with regard to the release of information 

contained in a file you have requested, please provide this office with a signed release that should 

authorize the disclosure of proprietary business and/or personal information contained in the subject file. 

Otherwise, you will be treated as a third-party requester.  

  

If you have any questions you can reach me at (501) 324-5871, ext. 300. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Jeffery Todd O’Donald, J.D. 

Paralegal Specialist 

 

 cc:  Lisa Babcock, Chief, Freedom of Information/ 

      Privacy Acts Office 

      U.S. Small Business Administration 

      409 Third Street, S.W. 

      Washington, D.C.  20416 

(Via Email) 
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